
EQC ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 

May 9, 2013 
 
 

BUREAU OF LAND AND WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 

Underground Storage Tank Enforcement 
 
 

1) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 12-0019-UST 
Order Date: February 22, 2013 
Respondents: Joey Bochette, Johnny Bochette, 

Donna Baxley, and Marsha 
Bochette 

Facilities: Evergreen Express, former Richter’s 
Grocery Store, Midway Supply 

Location: 6331 Pamplico Highway, Effingham, 
SC, and 6402 Pamplico Highway, 
Effinham, SC  

Mailing Address: 6331B Pamplico Highway, 
Effingham, SC 29541, 6331 
Pamplico Highway, Effingham, SC 
29541, 4735 Langston Road, 
Timmonsville, SC 29161 

County: Florence 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 03428, 03429, 16808 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), Section 44-2-
60(A) (2002 and Supp. 2010), and the South Carolina Underground 
Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.34(c), R.61-92.280.40(a), 
R.61-92.280.41(b)(1)(ii), R.61-92.280.44(a), R.61-92.280.93(a), R.61-
92.280.65, and R.61-92.280.110(c) (Supp. 2011).  

 
Summary:  Joey Bochette, Johnny Bochette, Donna Baxley, and Marsha 

Bochette (Respondents) own and operate underground storage tanks, located in 
Effingham, South Carolina, and have violated the South Carolina Underground 
Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to determine the full extent 
of a release in accordance with a schedule established by the Department; failure 
to demonstrate financial responsibility for an UST system and failure to provide 
financial responsibility documentation upon request by the Department; failure to 
provide adequate release detection methods for an UST system; failure to test the 
line leak detector function check annually; failure to conduct annual tightness 
tests on pressurized lines or have monthly monitoring; failure to pay annual UST 



registration fees for fiscal year 2013; and, failure to provide records to the 
Department upon request. 

 
Action:  The Respondents are required to: submit a Quality Assurance 

Program Plan (QAPP) for a Groundwater Monitoring Report for Evergreen 
Express; submit a QAPP for a Tier I Assessment Report for the Former Richters 
Grocery Store; submit a completed Certificate of Financial Responsibility and 
demonstration of the financial responsibility mechanism for Midway Supply, 
Evergreen Express, and former Richter’s Grocery Store; submit tank tightness, 
line tightness, and line leak detector test results for Midway Supply; pay annual 
UST registration fees and associated late fees for fiscal year 2013 in the amount 
of $242.00 for Midway Supply; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of thirty 
two thousand, eight hundred seventy dollars ($32,870.00).   

 
 

2) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-0478-UST 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Shivamaya, LLC 
Facility: Quick Stop Food Mart 
Location: 3808 Clemson Boulevard, Anderson, 

SC 29621 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Anderson 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 00447 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (2002 and 
Supp. 2011), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control 
Regulation 61-92.280.20(c)(1)(ii)   (Supp. 2011). 

 
Summary:  Shivamaya, LLC (Respondent) owns and operates 

underground storage tanks (USTs) in Anderson County, South Carolina, and has 
violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as 
follows:  failure to equip an underground storage tank system with overfill 
protection. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of 

one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).  The violations were corrected prior to the 
issuance of the Order. 

 
 

3) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-0508-UST 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Eagle Express of Aiken, Inc.  
Facility: Four Seasons 6 
Location: 213 Atomic Road  



Jackson, SC 29831 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 6680  

Aiken SC 29804 
County: Aiken 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 00164 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002 
and Supp. 2012), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank 
Control Regulation 61-92.280.93(a) and R.61-92.280.110(c) (Supp. 2012). 

 
Summary: Eagle Express of Aiken, Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates 

underground storage tanks (USTs) in Aiken County, South Carolina, and has 
violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as 
follows: failure to demonstrate financial responsibility and failure to submit 
updated financial responsibility documentation, upon expiration of the previous 
mechanism.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to submit a completed Certificate of 

Financial Responsibility and proof of a financial responsibility mechanism; and, 
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred fifty dollars ($850.00). 

 
 

4) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-0528-UST 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Lucky Strike Investments, Inc. 
Facility: Corner Stop 37 
Location: 607 West Main Street  

Walhalla, SC 29691 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Oconee 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 00447 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (2002 and 
Supp. 2011), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control 
Regulation 61-92.280.20(c)(1)(ii)   (Supp. 2011). 

 
Summary:  Lucky Strike Investments, Inc. (Respondent) owns and 

operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in Oconee County, South Carolina, 
and has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control 
Regulations as follows:  failure to equip an underground storage tank system with 
overfill protection. 

 



Action:  The Respondent is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount 
of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).  All violations were corrected prior to the 
issuance of the Order. 

 
 

5) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-0025-UST 
Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Jimmy Garrett 
Facility: Don’s Mufflers and Brakes 
Location Address: 508 Church Street  

Laurens, SC 
Mailing Address: 102 Southdale Drive  

Laurens, SC 29360 
County: Laurens 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 12251 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), (2002 and 
Supp. 2010), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control 
Regulation 61-92.280.34(c), R.61-92.280.70(a), R.61-92.280.93(a), and 
R.61-92.280.110(c) (Supp. 2011).  

 
Summary:  Jimmy Garrett (Respondent) owns underground storage tanks, 

located in Laurens, South Carolina, and has violated the South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to provide 
records to the Department upon request; failure to conduct appropriate release 
detection for a temporarily closed UST that contained more than one inch of 
residue; failure to demonstrate financial responsibility; and, failure to submit 
financial responsibility documentation to the Department upon request.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit twelve months of release 

detection records or proof that UST #3 has been emptied to less than one inch of 
residue; submit a completed Certificate of Financial Responsibility and proof of 
mechanism; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, four hundred 
dollars ($1,400.00) in accordance with a promissory note.   

 
 

Hazardous Waste Enforcement 
 

 
6) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-02-HW 

Order Date: March 13, 2013 
Respondent: Ortec, Inc. 
Facility: Ortec, Inc. 
Location: 505 Gentry Memorial Highway 

Easley, SC 29641 



Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1469  
Easley, SC 29641 

County: Pickens 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SCD 981 479 710 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Act §44-56-130(2); The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulation 61-79.262.34(a)(3), R. 61-79.262.34(a)(5), 
R. 61-79.262.34(a)(1)(i), R. 61-79.265.175(b)(1), R. 61-
79.262.34(c)(1)(i), R. 61-79.265.173(a), and R. 61-79.262.13(d). 

 
 Summary:  Ortec, Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates a polymer 
technology and custom chemical synthesis facility in Easley, South Carolina.  The 
Respondent violated the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: 
failure to ensure that each container is labeled or clearly marked with the EPA 
Hazardous Waste Number and the words, “Hazardous Waste – federal laws 
prohibit improper disposal;” failure to stack containers no more than two high 
without first obtaining written permission from the Department; failure to 
maintain a containment system to contain leaks and spills; failure to keep a 
container holding hazardous waste closed during storage; and, failure to provide a 
new or revised Notification form when information previously provided became 
outdated or inaccurate. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure that satellite storage areas 
and containers of hazardous waste are managed in compliance with the 
regulations; ensure that hazardous waste storage areas are provided with 
secondary containment; immediately submit a revised notification form whenever 
information previously provided becomes outdated or inaccurate; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six thousand, five hundred dollars ($6,500.00). 

 
 

7) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-03-HW 
Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Bruce Equipment, Inc. 
Facility: Bruce Equipment, Inc. 
Location: 13749 E. Wade Hampton Blvd. 
 Greer, SC 29651 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited: South Carolina Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulation 61-79.262.11. 

 
 Summary:  Bruce Equipment, Inc. (Respondent) purchases and refurbishes 
used heavy machinery/equipment.  The Respondent violated the Hazardous Waste 



Management Regulations by failing to make an accurate waste determination on 
solid wastes generated during its business operations. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure that an accurate waste 

determination is made on all solid wastes generated during its business operations 
and pay a civil penalty in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00). 

 
 

8) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-04-HW 
Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: Bommer Industries, Inc. 
Facility: Bommer Industries, Inc. - Gaffney 
Location: 584 Peachoid Road 

Gaffney, SC 29340 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 187 

Landrum, SC 29356 
County: Cherokee 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SCD 980 843 486 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Act §44-56-130(2); The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulation 61-79.262.11, R. 61-
79.262.34(a)(1)(i)/265.173(a), R. 61-79.262.34(a)(1)(i)/265.174, R. 61-
79.262.34(a)(2), R. 61-79.262.34(c)(1), and R. 61-79.262.34(c)(2). 

 
 Summary:  Bommer Industries, Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates a 
plating facility in Gaffney, South Carolina.  The Respondent violated the 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: failure to accurately 
determine whether a waste is hazardous waste; failure to keep a container holding 
hazardous waste closed during storage, except when it is necessary to add or 
remove waste; failure to inspect, at least weekly, areas where hazardous waste 
containers are stored; failure to ensure the date in which each accumulation period 
begins is clearly marked and visible on each container; failure to ensure 
accumulation of hazardous waste at or near any point of generation where waste 
initially accumulates, which is under the control of the operator of the process 
generating the waste; and, failure to mark the container holding excess 
accumulation of hazardous waste generated with the date the excess amount 
began accumulating. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure that a waste determination 
is made on all solid waste in accordance with the regulations; ensure that 
containers of hazardous waste are managed in accordance with the regulations; 
and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight thousand, seven hundred dollars 
($8,700.00). 

 
 



 
Infectious Waste Enforcement 

 
 

9) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-02-IW 
Order Date: March 18, 2013 
Respondent: CAHS Roper Hospital 
Facility: CAHS Roper Hospital 
Location: 316 Calhoun Street 
 Charleston, SC 29401-1125 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Charleston, South Carolina 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SC10-0264G 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Infectious Waste 
Management Act and the South Carolina Infectious Waste Management 
Regulation 61-105.F(4); R.61-105.F(6)(j); R.61-105.I(1); and, R.61-
105.J(2)(d).  

 
 Summary:  CAHS Roper Hospital (Respondent) is a large quantity 
generator of infectious waste, located at 316 Calhoun Street in Charleston, South 
Carolina.  The Respondent violated the Infectious Waste Management 
Regulations as follows: generated and stored infectious waste without complying 
with the procedures described in the Regulations; failed to pay annual registration 
fees; failed to obtain and record an accurate weight of waste within 50 days of 
shipment; failed to package infectious waste to prevent any release of infectious 
waste from its packaging before storing, transporting or offering for transport 
offsite; and, failed to ensure that containers of infectious waste offered for offsite 
transport were visibly labeled with the date that the container was placed in 
storage or moved offsite. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure compliance with the South 
Carolina Infectious Waste Management Act and Regulations; ensure that annual 
fees are paid and the weight of waste is obtained and recorded in accordance with 
R.61-105 Section F – Generator Requirements; ensure that all containers of 
infectious waste are packaged in accordance with R.61-105 Section I – 
Packaging; ensure that all containers of infectious waste are labeled in accordance 
with R.61-105 Section J – Labeling of Containers; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of two thousand, six hundred forty dollars ($2,640.00). 

 
 

Solid Waste Enforcement 
 

 
10) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-14-SW 

Order Date: March 11, 2013 



Respondent: Mary A. Guy 
Facility: Saluda Street Site – Tax Map #079-

03-01-012-000 
Location Address: Saluda Street 

Chester, SC 
Mailing Address: 118 Cushman Drive 

Chester, SC 29706 
County: Chester 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited: South Carolina Solid Waste Policy 
and Management Act of 1991 (Rev. 2002), the Solid Waste Management: 
Waste Tires Regulation 61-107.3 (Supp. 2011), and the Solid Waste 
Management: Used Oil Regulation 61-107.279 (Supp. 2012). 

 
Summary:  Mary A. Guy (Respondent) owns and allows the operation of a 

trucking business at the Saluda Street Site, located in Chester, South Carolina, and 
has violated the South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and Management Act of 1991, 
the Waste Tires Regulation, and the Used Oil Regulation as follows: failure to 
obtain a permit from the Department to operate a waste tire collection site, in that 
the Respondent failed to qualify for an exemption from the Waste Tires 
Regulation due to improper management of the waste tires generated by the 
business; and, failure to clean up and manage released used oil at the Site, in that 
the Respondent failed to clean up oil-stained areas at the Site. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: immediately begin to prevent and 

effectively control mosquitoes at the Site through the use of insecticides, 
pesticides, tarpaulins, and other means necessary; immediately, upon observation 
of a release of used oil to the environment, stop the release; contain the released 
used oil; remove the stained soil and dispose at a permitted solid waste facility; 
submit documentation verifying that the oil-contaminated soil has been removed 
from the Site and properly disposed; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of two 
thousand, five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) in accordance with a promissory note.   

 
  

11) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-21-SW 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Greenworks Recycling, Inc. 
Facility: Southern Grading II Composting 
Location Address: 926 Fairview Road 

Simpsonville, SC 
Mailing Address: 20 Piney Mountain Road 

Greenville, SC 29609 
County: Greenville 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 232701-3002 



Violations Cited: South Carolina Solid Waste Policy 
and Management Act of 1991 (Rev. 2002) and the Solid Waste 
Management: Yard Trash and Land-Clearing Debris; and Compost 
Regulation 61-107.4.F.10. (Supp. 2012). 

 
Summary:  Greenworks Recycling, Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates a 

composting facility, located in Simpsonville, South Carolina, and has violated the 
South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and Management Act of 1991, and the Solid 
Waste Yard Trash and Land-Clearing Debris; and, Compost Regulation as 
follows: failure to post signs in conspicuous places identifying the owner, 
operator, or a contact person and telephone number in case of emergency, and the 
hours during which the site is open for public use.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: bring the Facility into compliance 

by posting the required signage and pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight 
hundred dollars ($800.00).   

 
 

BUREAU OF WATER 
 
 

Drinking Water Enforcement 
 
 

12) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-018-DW 
Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Tracy Trigg Camping Resorts,  
 Inc. 
Facility: Charlotte Fort Mill KOA 
Location: 940 Gold Hill Road 
 Fort Mill, SC 29708 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: York 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 46-033-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Tracy Trigg Camping Resorts, Inc. (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the depth 
markers were not the approved sized letters and numbers; the ladders at the pool 
entrance were not tight and secure; the pool floor had sand on it; the pool deck 
was not clear of hazards in that concrete was missing along the pool deck; the 
gate did not self close and latch; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable 
range of water quality standards; there was a hole in the pool wall; the skimmers 
were not clean; there were chemicals in the pump room; the flow meter was not 



operating; the pool rules sign was not completely filled out; the pool operator of 
record information was not posted; one of the “No Lifeguard on Duty – Swim at 
Your Own Risk” signs was broken; and, the bound and numbered log book was 
not maintained on a daily basis.  A violation was issued for failure to properly 
operate and maintain the pool on one occasion. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of four hundred dollars ($400.00).  The civil penalty has 
been paid. 
 
 
13) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-019-DW 

Order Date: March 14, 2013 
Respondent: SWVP Hilton Head, LLC 
Facility: Westin Resort 
Location: 2 Grasslawn Avenue 
 Hilton Head Island, SC 29928 
Mailing Address: 1703 Laurel Street 
 Columbia, SC 29201 
County: Beaufort 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 07-290-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  SWVP Hilton Head, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the plaster on the 
pool floor was chipped; the pool deck was not clear of hazards in that the deck 
was cracked and had sharp edges, the drains were not operating properly causing 
standing water to accumulate; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable 
range of water quality standards; and, the cyanuric acid level was above the water 
quality standards acceptable limit.  A violation was issued for failure to properly 
operate and maintain the pool on three occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of two thousand four hundred dollars ($2,400.00).  The 
civil penalty has been paid. 

 
 
14) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-020-DW 

Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Bell Partners Inc. 
Facility: Estates at Bellwood 
Location: 7 Southpointe Drive 



 Greenville, SC 29607 
Mailing Address: 1513 Loch Lomad Drive 
 Greenville, SC 29615 
County: Greenville 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 23-562-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Bell Partners Inc. (Respondent) operates and manages a pool.  

The Respondent has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  
the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; 
the pH level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the 
cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; and, 
the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis.  A 
violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on two 
occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).   
 

 
15) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-021-DW 

Order Date: March 14, 2013 
Respondent: Shakti, LLC  
Facility: Best Western   
Location: 1428 Sniders Highway  
 Walterboro, SC 29488 
Mailing Address: 97 Downs Lane 
 Walterboro, SC 29488 
County: Colleton 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 15-014-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  
 
Summary:  Shakti, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the 

proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the current pool operator of 
record information was not posted; the chlorine level was not within the 
acceptable range of water quality standards; the bound and numbered log book 
was not maintained on a daily basis; the cyanuric acid level was above the water 
quality standards acceptable limit; and, the pool deck was not clear of hazards in 
that a depth marker tile was broken and had sharp edges.  A violation was issued 
for failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on two occasions. 
 



Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).  The civil penalty has 
been paid. 
 
 
16) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-022-DW 

Order Date: March 14, 2013 
Respondent: Tin Associates LLC 
Facility: Ramada Limited 
Location: 1015 South Lake Drive
 Lexington, SC 29073 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Lexington 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 32-184-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Tin Associates LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible for 

the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  a ladder was not tight and secure; 
the gate did not self latch; the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality 
standards acceptable limit; the shepherd’s crook was missing a bolt; the pool rules 
sign was not completely filled out; only one of the  “Shallow Water – No Diving” 
signs was posted; only one of the “No Lifeguard on Duty – Swim at Your Own 
Risk” signs was posted; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on 
a daily basis; the return inlets did not have eyeball fittings; the flow meter was not 
operational; the pH level was not within the acceptable range of water quality 
standards; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality 
standards; the water level was low; and, the water was cloudy.  A violation was 
issued for failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on two occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).  The civil penalty 
has been paid. 
 

 
17) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-023-DW 

Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: Turtle Creek Homeowners  
 Association, Inc. 
Facility: Turtle Creek Subdivision 
Location: Wickham Way 
 Spartanburg, SC 29316 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 160207 



 Spartanburg, SC 29316 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 42-204-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Turtle Creek Homeowners Association, Inc. (Respondent) 

owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The 
Respondent has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the 
deck was not clear of hazards in that the chairs were not at least four feet from the 
edge of the pool; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water 
quality standards; the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards 
acceptable limit; the pool rules sign was not completely filled out; the pool 
operator of record information was not posted; the emergency telephone was not 
operating properly; and, the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on 
a daily basis.  A violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain 
the pool on two occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of five hundred sixty dollars ($560.00).  The civil penalty 
has been paid. 
 
 
18) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-024-DW 

Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: The Retreat of Clemson, LLC  
Facility: The Retreat of Clemson 
Location: 101 West Lane  
 Clemson, SC 29633 
Mailing Address: 12302 Pine Valley Club  
 Charlotte, NC 28277-4020 
County: Pickens 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 39-1035B 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  The Retreat of Clemson, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the lifeline floats 
were not properly spaced; the depth markers at the water line were missing; the 
skimmers were not operating properly in that the water level was too low; the 
gate did not self latch; the bathrooms were not accessible; the chlorine level was 
not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the bound and 
numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis; a bolt on the shepherd’s 
crook was loose; the disinfection equipment was not operating; and, the 



recirculation and filtration system was not operating.  A violation was issued for 
failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on two occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; keep the pool closed 
until the deficiencies have been corrected; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount 
of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).  The civil penalty has been paid.   

 
 

19) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-025-DW 
Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: Rung, LLC 
Facility: Country Inn & Suites 
Location: 2450 Boundary Street  
 Beaufort, SC 29906 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 4236 
 Beaufort, SC 29903 
County: Beaufort 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 07-1017B 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Rung, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the 

proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the bound and numbered log book 
was not maintained on a daily basis; the pool floor had sand on it; the chlorine 
level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the United 
States Coast Guard approved life ring did not have a permanently attached rope; 
the pH level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the 
disinfection equipment was not operating properly; and, the plaster on the pool 
floor was chipped.  A violation was issued for failure to properly operate and 
maintain the pool on four occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of one thousand six hundred eighty dollars ($1,680.00).   
 

 
20) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-026-DW 

Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: R & D Hotel, Inc.  
Facility: Days Inn 
Location: 1787 Sniders Highway   
 Walterboro, SC 29488 
Mailing Address: 3034 Washington Road 
 Augusta, GA 30907 



County: Colleton 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 15-024-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  R & D Hotel, Inc. (Respondent) owns and is responsible for 

the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the chlorine level was not within 
the acceptable range of water quality standards; the skimmer lids were cracked; 
the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the 
bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis; the 
shepherd’s crook was missing; and, the gate did not self close and latch.  A 
violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on two 
occasions. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). 
 

 
21) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-027-DW 

Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: SC Oak Forest Associates LLC 
Facility: Haven at Oak Forest  
 Apartments I, II, and III   
Location: 200 Heath Lane 
 Spartanburg, SC 29301 
Mailing Address: 2284 Ashley River Road 
 Charleston, SC 29414 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 42-165-1, 42-181-1, and 42-1011-B 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  
 
Summary:  SC Oak Forest Associates LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of three pools.  The 
Respondent has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the 
chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the 
pH level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the 
cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the 
bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis; there was 
standing water in the women’s bathroom; the bathrooms had no paper towels; the 
emergency telephone was not accessible in that ants infested the area around the 
telephone; and a ladder and handrail were not tight and secure.  A violation was 
issued for failure to properly operate and maintain the pools on two occasions. 

 



Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of two thousand four hundred dollars ($2,400.00).   

 
 

22) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-028-DW 
Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: SouthCable Services, LLC 
Facility: Hickory Hill Mobile Home Park 
Location: 142 Industrial Drive 
 Lexington, SC 29072 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2106 
 Lexington, SC 29071 
County: Lexington 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 3260115 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.H 

 
Summary:  SouthCable Services, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system 
(PWS).  The Respondent has violated the State Primary Drinking Water 
Regulations as follows:  the PWS exceeded the maximum contaminant level 
(MCL) for combined radium 226/228. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan to 
include proposed steps to address the MCL exceedance at the PWS and pay a 
stipulated penalty in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should the 
Respondent fail to meet any requirement of the Order.   
 

 
Water Pollution Enforcement 

 
 

23) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-019-W 
Order Date: March 11, 2013  
Respondent: AVX Corporation 
Facility: AVX Myrtle Beach Plant 
Location: 801 17th Ave South 
 Myrtle Beach, SC 29577 
Mailing Address:  P. O. Box 867  
 Myrtle Beach, SC 29578 
County: Horry County 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SC0047953 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d) 
(2008) and 24 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.41 (a) and (d) (2011). 



 
Summary:  AVX Corporation (Respondent) is responsible for the proper 

operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility (WWTF) located 
in Horry County, South Carolina.  The Respondent has violated the Pollution 
Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permits as follows: The Respondent 
failed to comply with the permitted limits for biochemical oxygen demand in the 
NPDES Permit.  

 
  Action:  The Respondent is required to:  immediately implement measures 
necessary, to ensure that all of the treated wastewater is land-applied, thus 
preventing discharges to Withers Swash; submit an Operations Plan to include 
measures to be implemented to prevent the discharge of treated wastewater to 
Withers Swash; inspect the outfall from Pond Three daily and if discharge occurs, 
collect and analyze a sample of the discharge for BOD; provide a report of the 
results of the inspections and any sample results with the monthly discharge 
monitoring report; if the sample results in the reports required do not meet the 
current Permit effluent limits for BOD, submit a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) 
and schedule with measures to be implemented to ensure compliance with the 
effluent limits; if after the issuance of a new NPDES Permit, for a period of one 
year, twelve monitoring periods, the effluent is in violation of the Permit effluent 
limits for BOD, the Respondent shall submit a CAP and schedule with the 
measures to be implemented to ensure compliance with compliance with the 
Permit; and, pay stipulated penalty of eight thousand dollars ($8,000.00) should 
the Respondent fail to comply with the requirements of the Order.  

 
  

24) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-020-W 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: McCall Farms, Inc. 
Facility: McCall Farms, Inc. 
Location: 6615 South Irby Street 
 Effingham, SC 29541-9711 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Florence County 
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: SC0039284 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d) 
(2008); 24 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.41(a) and (d)(2011). 

 
Summary:  McCall Farms, Inc. (Respondent), located in Effingham, South 

Carolina, owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a 
wastewater treatment facility (WWTF).  The Respondent has violated the 
Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permits Regulations as 
follows: it failed to comply with the effluent discharge limits of the NPDES 
Permit for total suspended solids (TSS) and biochemical oxygen demand (BOD).  

 



Action:  The Respondent has agreed to: submit a corrective action plan 
(CAP) with a schedule of implementation and pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
two thousand one hundred dollars ($2,100.00).  

 
 

25) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-021-W 
Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Pilgrim’s Pride Corporation  
Facility: Pilgrim’s Pride Poultry Processing 

Facility 
Location: 2050 Highway 15 South 
 Sumter, SC 29150 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Sumter  
Previous Orders: 08-117-W ($24,000.00); 11-039-W 

($16,800.00) 
Permit/ID Number: SC0000795 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d) 
(2008) and 24 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.41 (a) and (d) (2011). 

 
Summary:  Pilgrim’s Pride Corporation (Respondent) is responsible for 

the proper operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility 
(WWTF) serving the Pilgrim’s Pride Poultry Processing Plant, located in Sumter 
County, South Carolina.  The Respondent has violated the Pollution Control Act 
and Water Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows: failed to comply with 
the permitted limits for fecal coliform bacteria (Fecal); failed to comply with a 
compliance schedule in its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Permit; and, constructed and placed into operation, modifications to the 
disinfection treatment systems at the WWTF without obtaining approval from the 
Department. 

  
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit a construction permit 

application to include as-built plans and specifications, for the purpose of 
obtaining a construction permit and approval to operate for the modified 
disinfection system; submit a corrective action plan to include the actions 
implemented to prevent future effluent violations; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of eleven thousand two hundred dollars ($11,200.00).  

 
 

26) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-022-W 
Order Date: March 18, 2013 
Respondent: Brandon L. Wood 
Facility: High Hope Farms 
Location: 1529 Highway 182 
 Oconee, SC 29643 
Mailing Address: Same 



County: Oconee  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: ND0070716 
Violations Cited: 25 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
43.200.190 (Supp. 2002). 

 
Summary:  Brandon L. Wood (Respondent), located in Oconee County, 

South Carolina, owns and is responsible for the proper disposal of manure from 
his agricultural facility.  The Respondent has violated the Standards for the 
Permitting of Agricultural Animal Facilities Regulations as follows: failed to 
obtain his confined animal manure management (CAMM) certification as 
required.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit a copy of his CAMM 

certification on or before May 1, 2013 and pay a stipulated penalty in the 
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) should the Respondent fail to comply 
with the Order. 

 
 
27) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-023-W 

Order Date: March 18, 2013 
Respondent: Christopher M. Wood 
Facility: Wood Poultry Farm 
Location: 910 Highway 182 
 Oconee, SC 29643 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Oconee 
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: ND0078875 
Violations Cited: 25 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
43.200.190 (Supp. 2002). 

 
Summary:  Christopher M. Wood (Respondent), located in Oconee 

County, South Carolina, owns and is responsible for the proper disposal of 
manure from his agricultural facility.  The Respondent has violated the Standards 
for the Permitting of Agricultural Animal Facilities Regulations as follows:  failed 
to obtain his confined animal manure management (CAMM) certification as 
required.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit a copy of his CAMM 

certification on or before May 1, 2013 and pay a stipulated penalty in the 
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) should the Respondent fail to comply 
with the Order. 

 
  

 



 
BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY 

 
 

28) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-007-A 
Order Date: March 18, 2013 
Respondent:    Wellman Plastics Recycling, LLC 
Facility:    Wellman Plastics Recycling, Inc. 
Location:    520 Kingsburg Highway 

Johnsonville, SC  29555 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 188 

       Johnsonville, SC  29555 
County: Florence 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 1040-0006 
Violations Cited:   24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, 
Section II, Permit Requirements  

 
Summary: Wellman Plastics Recycling, LLC (Respondent) recycles 

polymer resins and synthetic fibers from post industrial and post consumer plastic 
bottle, carpeting and other recyclable plastics at its facility located in 
Johnsonville, South Carolina.  The Department issued Part 70 (Title V) Air 
Quality Operating Permit TV-1040-0006 to the Respondent, effective January 1, 
2008.  The Respondent violated South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations 
and its Permit as follows:  failed to maintain and operate air pollution control 
equipment, in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practices for 
minimizing emissions; failed to minimize fugitive PM emissions from material 
handling, process equipment, control equipment, or storage piles to the maximum 
extent possible; failed to record daily pressure drop readings and corrective 
actions taken when deviations occurred; and, failed to record daily temperature 
readings and corrective actions taken when deviations occurred. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: maintain and operate any source, 

including associated air pollution control equipment, in a manner consistent with 
good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions; minimize fugitive 
PM emissions from material handling, process equipment, control equipment, or 
storage piles to the maximum extent possible; maintain daily pressure drop 
readings and corrective actions taken during source operation; maintain daily 
temperature readings and corrective actions for its afterburners; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of seven thousand dollars ($7,000.00) payable in three (3) 
installments. 
 

 
29) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-008-A 

Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Exopack LLC 



Facility: Exopack LLC 
Location: 345 Cedar Springs Ave. 
 Spartanburg, SC 29302 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5497  
 Spartanburg, SC 29302 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: TV-2060-0075 
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 70.6(c) and 24A 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.70.6(c), and 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
62.1, Section II. 
 
Summary:  Exopack, LLC (Respondent) owns and operates a facility that 

prints and assembles bags, primarily for use in the pet food industry.  The 
Department issued Part 70 Air Quality Operating Permit TV-2060-0075 (Title V 
Permit) to the Respondent, effective July 1, 2008.  The Respondent violated its 
Title V Permit, U.S. EPA Regulations at 40 CFR and South Carolina Air 
Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failed to submit an accurate and 
complete Title V Annual Compliance Certification (TVACC); failed to include all 
required information in a semiannual monitoring report; and, upon detecting 
excursions from the minimum operating temperature of its Regenerative Thermal 
Oxidizer (RTO), failed to restore it to the normal or usual manner of operation. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit TVACC’s that accurately 

and completely indicate the facility’s compliance status; include all required 
information in its semiannual monitoring reports; upon detecting excursions, 
restore operation of its RTO to the normal or usual manner of operation; and, pay 
a civil penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 

 
 

30) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13-009-A 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Travelhome, LLC 
Facility: Casa Del Oro Motel and Apartments 
Location: 401 14th Avenue South  

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Horry 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited:   U.S. EPA 40 CFR 61.145 and 
61.150, and 25A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Sections V, VI, VIII, and 
X.  

 
Summary:  Travelhome, LLC (Respondent), owns the Casa Del Oro Motel 

and Apartments located in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina.  The Respondent 



violated U.S. EPA Asbestos Regulations at 40 CFR and South Carolina Standards 
of Performance for Asbestos Projects as follows: failed to ensure that a building 
inspection was performed prior to beginning renovation; failed to submit a written 
notice of intent to renovate to the Department, at least 10 working days prior to 
beginning a major asbestos project; failed to ensure that the required work 
practice requirements were adhered to while engaged in a major asbestos project; 
failed to obtain a Department-issued asbestos project license; failed to use 
workers that were licensed by the Department; and, failed to ensure that asbestos-
containing materials were properly disposed. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure a building inspection is 

performed prior to engaging in any future renovation or demolition operations; 
ensure that applicable notifications are submitted to the Department and required 
licenses are obtained prior to engaging in future asbestos projects; not engage in 
regulated asbestos projects unless licensed by the Department; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of eleven thousand two hundred dollars ($11,200.00).    

 
 

 31) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 13-010-A 
Order Date: March 11, 2013 
Respondent: Travelhome 1405, LLC 
Facility: Sportsman Motor Inn 
Location: 1405 South Ocean Blvd., Myrtle 

Beach, SC 29577 
Mailing Address: 401 14th Avenue South, Myrtle 

Beach, SC 29577 
County: Horry 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited:   U.S. EPA 40 CFR 61.145 and 
61.150, and 25A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Sections V, VI, VIII, and 
X.  

 
Summary: Travelhome 1405, LLC (Respondent), owns the Sportsman 

Motor Inn located in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Respondent violated 
U.S. EPA Asbestos Regulations at 40 CFR and South Carolina Standards of 
Performance for Asbestos Projects as follows: failed to ensure that a building 
inspection was performed prior to beginning renovation; failed to submit a written 
notice of intent to renovate to the Department at least 10 working days prior to 
beginning a major asbestos project; failed to ensure that the required work 
practice requirements were adhered to while engaged in a major asbestos project; 
failed to obtain a Department-issued asbestos project license; failed to use 
workers that were licensed by the Department; and, failed to ensure that asbestos-
containing materials were properly disposed. 

 



Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure a building inspection is 
performed prior to engaging in any future renovation or demolition operations; 
ensure that applicable notifications are submitted to the Department and required 
licenses are obtained prior to engaging in future asbestos projects; not engage in 
regulated asbestos projects unless licensed by the Department; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of eleven thousand two hundred dollars ($11,200.00).    

 
 
32) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 13-011-A 

Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Neo Corporation 
Facility: Neo Corporation 
Location: 387 Serpentine Dr.  
 Spartanburg, SC 29303 
Mailing Address: 289 Silkwood Dr.  
 Canton, NC 28716 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 61.145(c)(6)(i), 
and 25A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Sections V and X, et seq. 
 
Summary:  Neo Corporation (Respondent) is a Department-licensed 

asbestos abatement contractor (License ASB-33).  The Respondent violated U.S. 
EPA Asbestos Regulations at 40 CFR and South Carolina Standards of 
Performance for Asbestos Projects as follows: failed to obtain an asbestos project 
license from the Department prior to beginning an asbestos project involving 
regulated asbestos-containing materials (RACM); failed to ensure that all RACM 
remained wet until properly disposed and was prevented from accumulating; and, 
failed to perform additional wet cleaning and vacuuming when there was 
evidence of contamination. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: comply with all applicable work 

practice requirements of the asbestos regulations for asbestos projects involving 
RACM; obtain an asbestos project license prior to beginning any asbestos project 
involving RACM; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of ten thousand four 
hundred dollars ($10,400.00). 

 
 
33) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 13-012-A 

Order Date: March 22, 2013 
Respondent: City of Lancaster 
Facility: Museum for USC-Lancaster 
Location: 119 South Main St.  

Lancaster, SC  29720 
Mailing Address: 1309 Lynwood Dr.  



Lancaster, SC 29720 
County: Lancaster 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited:   U.S. EPA 40 CFR 61.145 and 
61.150, and 25A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Sections V, VI, VIII, and 
X 

 
Summary: The City of Lancaster (Respondent), owns a former 

commercial building currently used by USC-Lancaster located in Lancaster, 
South Carolina.  The Respondent violated U.S. EPA Asbestos Regulations at 40 
CFR and South Carolina Standards of Performance for Asbestos Projects as 
follows: failed to ensure that a building inspection was performed prior to 
beginning renovation; failed to submit a written notice of intent to renovate to the 
Department, at least 10 working days prior to beginning a major asbestos project; 
failed to ensure that the required work practice requirements were adhered to 
while engaged in a major asbestos project; failed to obtain a Department-issued 
asbestos project license; failed to use workers that were licensed by the 
Department; and, failed to ensure that asbestos-containing materials were properly 
disposed. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure a building inspection is 

performed prior to engaging in any future renovation or demolition operations; 
ensure that applicable notifications are submitted to the Department and required 
licenses are obtained prior to engaging in future asbestos projects; not engage in 
regulated asbestos projects unless licensed by the Department; implement 
operating procedures to ensure building inspections are performed prior to future 
renovation projects; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of twelve thousand 
dollars ($12,000.00).    

 
 
34) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 13-013-A 

Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Lee Funeral Home, Inc. D.B.A. 

Lee Funeral Home & Crematory 
and D.B.A. Heavenly Paws 

Facility: Heavenly Paws  
Location: 2490 Old Wampee Rd. 

Little River, SC, 29566 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1116  

Little River, SC 29566 
County: Horry 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 1340-0130 
Violations Cited:   24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, 
Section II, and 24A S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-62.5, Section IX.  



 
Summary: Lee Funeral Home, Inc. d.b.a. Lee Funeral Home & Crematory 

and d.b.a. Heavenly Paws (Respondent), operates a pet crematorium located in 
Little River, South Carolina.  On July 24, 2008, the Department issued Air 
Quality Operating Permit 1340-0130 to the Respondent.  The Respondent violated 
South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: operated the 
incinerator without a trained operator onsite. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: ensure that a trained operator is 

onsite at all times while the incinerator and/or afterburners are in operation; 
record the date, time, duration, and name of the trained operator onsite during 
source operation, including the total daily cremation rate and the facility’s hours 
of operation; ensure the facility is adequately secured to prevent unauthorized 
access and operation of the incinerator; and, pay a suspended penalty in the 
amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) should the Respondent fail to meet 
the requirements of the Order.    

 
 
35) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 13-014-A 

Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: J.B. Russell & Son Construction 

Co., Inc. d.b.a. JBR 
Environmental Services 

Facility: J.B. Russell & Son Construction Co., 
Inc. d.b.a. JBR Environmental 
Services 

Location: 953 Floyd St.  
 Spartanburg, SC 29303 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 4098  
 Spartanburg, SC 29305 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, 
Sections V, and VIII, et. seq. 
 
Summary:  J.B. Russell & Son Construction Co., Inc. d.b.a. JBR 

Environmental Services (Respondent) is a Department-licensed asbestos 
abatement contractor (License CO-00025).  The Respondent violated South 
Carolina Standards of Performance for Asbestos Projects as follows: failed to 
obtain the appropriate asbestos project license prior to beginning an asbestos 
project involving regulated asbestos-containing materials (RACM); and failed to 
properly dispose of asbestos waste. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: apply for and obtain an asbestos 

project license prior to beginning any asbestos project involving RACM; comply 



with all applicable work practice and disposal requirements for asbestos projects 
involving RACM; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight thousand dollars 
($8,000.00). 

 
 
36) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 13-015-A 

Order Date: March 21, 2013 
Respondent: Greenville Colorants LLC 
Facility: Greenville Colorants LLC 
Location: 105 Wood Street  
 Greenville, SC 29611 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Greenville 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 1200-0154 
Violations Cited: 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, 
Section II, et seq. 
 
Summary:  Greenville Colorants LLC (Respondent) owns and operates a 

facility that blends and packages powder and liquid dyes for various industries.  
On March 15, 20116, the Department issued Air Quality Operating Permit 1200-
0154 (Operating Permit) to the Respondent.  The Respondent violated its 
Operating Permit as follows: failed to submit a request for renewal of its 
operating permit; failed to apply for and obtain permits prior to constructing and 
operating several sources of air contaminants; failed to record and maintain 
records of maintenance events; failed to ensure that all control devices associated 
with its solution mixing operation were operational and in place at all times when 
equipment controlled by the devices was operating; failed to record operation and 
maintenance (O&M) checks for its baghouse cleaning systems, dust collection 
hoppers, and conveying systems; and, failed to record pressure drop, pH, and 
O&M checks for its scrubber. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: obtain permits prior to 

constructing, operating, altering or adding to a source of air contaminants, 
including installation of any device for the control of air contaminant discharges; 
submit operating permit renewal requests prior to the permit expiration date; 
record and maintain records of maintenance events; ensure that all control devices 
are operational and in place at all times when equipment controlled by the devices 
are operating; record and maintain records of O&M checks for the baghouse 
cleaning systems, dust collection hoppers, and conveying systems; record and 
maintain records of pressure drop, pH, and O&M checks for the scrubber; and, 
pay a civil penalty in the amount of nine thousand five hundred dollars 
($9,500.00). 

 
 


